

1 STATE OF MISSOURI
2 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
3
4 TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
5 Local Public Hearing
6 January 27, 2015
7 Union, Missouri
8 Volume 12
9
10 In the Matter of Union)
11 Electric Company d/b/a)
12 Ameren Missouri's Tariff)File No. ER-2014-0258
13 To Increase Its Revenues)
14 For Electric Service)
15
16 KENNARD JONES, Presiding
17 CHIEF REGULATORY LAW JUDGE
18
19 ROBERT S. KENNEY, Chairman
20 SCOTT T. RUPP
21 COMMISSIONERS
22
23 REPORTED BY:
24 Rebecca Brewer, RPR, CRR
25 MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

A P P E A R A N C E S

For Ameren:

Mr. Matthew R. Tomc
Union Electric Company d/b/a Ameren Missouri
1901 Chouteau Avenue
P.O. Box 66149
St. Louis, Missouri, 63166
(314) 544-3484

For the Office of Public Counsel:

Ms. Christina Baker, P.E., J.D.
Deputy Public Counsel
200 Madison Street
P.O. BOX 2230
Jefferson City, Missouri, 65102
(573) 751-5324
christina.baker@ded.mo.gov

For the Staff of the Missouri Public Service

Commission:
Ms. Whitney Payne
ASSISTANT STAFF COUNSEL
200 Madison Street
P.O. Box 360
Jefferson City, Missouri, 65102
(573) 526-6036
Whitney.payne@psc.mo.gov

The Court Reporter:

Ms. Rebecca Brewer
Midwest Litigation Services
711 N. Eleventh Street
St. Louis, Missouri, 63101
(314) 644-2191

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

P R O C E E D I N G S

JUDGE JONES: Okay. We're going to go ahead and get started. I have a list here of people who have signed up to give testimony. I hope that you all have gotten your questions answered. If you haven't, if you think of more questions, those people toward who you directed your questions before will still be here to perhaps address those concerns you have later. My name is Kennard Jones. As I said earlier, I'm the judge who will be presiding over this local public hearing. I have nine people signed up to give testimony. So I'm going to start with the first person. Have you come up to the podium, swear you in as a witness, and then you'll be able to make your statement. Reminder, just pause for a moment after you make your statement. Myself or one of the two commissioners sitting on either side of me may have a question for you. After that you have a seat and I'll move on to the next person. After we're done with the list, if there's someone here who didn't sign on and who wants to make a statement, I'll give you an opportunity to do that by show of hands. We'll exhaust the people here who then want to make a statement. Right now,

1 we'll take entries of appearances beginning with
2 Ameren, Missouri.

3 MR. TOMC: Thank you, Your Honor. Matthew
4 R. Tomc appearing on behalf of the Union Electric
5 Company, doing business as Ameren Missouri, St.
6 Louis, Missouri.

7 JUDGE JONES: And the office of Public
8 Counsel?

9 MS. BAKER: Thank you. Christina Baker,
10 P.O. Box 2230, Jefferson City, Missouri, 65102,
11 appearing on behalf the Office of Public Counsel
12 and the customers.

13 JUDGE JONES: And staff of the Public
14 Service Commission?

15 MS. PAYNE: Whitney Payne on behalf of the
16 Staff of the Public Service Commission.

17 JUDGE JONES: To my right is chairman of
18 the commission, Robert Kenney. To my left is
19 Commissioner Scott Rupp. Mr. Chairman, would you
20 like to make any statements?

21 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Just briefly.
22 Thanks, Judge. Welcome, everybody, to the 11th of
23 12 local public hearings. I do want to welcome you
24 here and thank you for taking the time on a Tuesday
25 night to be a part of this process. This is an

1 important part of the process and we do appreciate
2 the time that you've taken to come and share your
3 thoughts and your perspective with us. There are
4 two of us here. There are a total of five
5 commissioners. The other three weren't able to be
6 here, but don't read anything negative into that.
7 As the judge indicated, your testimony will be
8 transcribed by the court reporter and the other
9 three commissioners will have the opportunity to
10 review the transcript of this local public hearing
11 and take into account the comments and the remarks
12 that you're making as we deliberate after the case
13 is concluded and after the hearing is concluded in
14 February.

15 So we do appreciate and we do find
16 important your contribution to the process. And on
17 behalf of the Commission, welcome you and thank you
18 for being here, and I look forward to hearing what
19 you have to say. Thank you.

20 COMMISSIONER RUPP: Great. I'm
21 Commissioner Scott Rupp, wanted to welcome you.
22 Also wanted to let you know, if you have any
23 comments that maybe deal with customer service, how
24 a company has interacted with you, good, bad,
25 positive, negative, we'd like to hear that as well

1 so we know how the company is interacting with rate
2 payers. So if you have a comment about something
3 in the past you would like us to know, we welcome
4 those comments as well. The only thing I will
5 remind you is that we are -- the commissioners,
6 myself and Commissioner Kenney, we are not allowed
7 to answer any questions that you pose towards us.
8 That will be -- could be construed as prejudging
9 the case. So our role here is just to listen to
10 everything you have to say. So any questions you
11 do pose to us will have to be rhetorical and if you
12 have any questions, there is still our PSC staff as
13 well as the Office of Public Counsel and the
14 company is outside. They can answer some of those
15 as well. But, welcome, we look forward to hearing
16 your comments.

17 JUDGE JONES: Okay. Let's get started.
18 First witness is Mel Wurth. Did I pronounce your
19 last name?

20 MR. WURTH: Yes, sir. Close enough. I've
21 been called worse.

22 JUDGE JONES: Can you raise your right
23 hand?

24 MEL WURTH,
25 Of lawful age, produced, sworn and

1 examined, deposes and says:

2 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, sir. You may
3 proceed.

4 MR. WURTH: Thank you, Commissioners. I'm
5 going to read you a couple quotes and just an idea.
6 Back in 2008, the San Francisco Chronicle, the then
7 candidate Barack Obama stated to The Chronicle that
8 he will bankrupt the coal industry. Also, to the
9 San Francisco Chronicle, he stated, When I was
10 asked earlier about the issue of coal under my plan
11 of cap and trade system, electricity rates would
12 necessarily skyrocket. Okay. I feel like a duck
13 out of water because I'm fighting a monopoly. I'm
14 fighting the federal government using the EPA
15 unconstitutionally. And this president has stated
16 on record that he is doing it on purpose. Okay?
17 The EPA, by the constitution, is not allowed to
18 make legislation. Okay? Congress has advocated
19 its own power because they're lazy or they don't
20 want to do their job. And they're allowing us to
21 pay the price for it. And I've seen my rates
22 skyrocket, almost double during the winter, since
23 six years ago. Okay. Here's another one. And I
24 will leave these with you as proof of where I'm
25 getting my information. Okay. This came from The

1 Free Republic CNS News. And this is posted on
2 January 16th, 2015. Even as gasoline prices
3 plummeted and the overall energy price index
4 calculated by the Bureau of Labor Statistics
5 declined, the electricity prices bucked the trend
6 and in the United States in 2014, data released
7 today by The Bureau of Labor Statistics indicates
8 that the electricity price indexes hit all time
9 highs for the month of December and for the year.
10 2014 was the most expensive year ever for
11 electricity in the United States. The Annual Price
12 Index for electricity published by the BLS today
13 was 208.020. That was up from 200.750 in 2013.
14 Okay. So it looks like the president's plan is
15 working. And we're, again, asked to foot the bill
16 for Ameren UE. Okay?

17 I have found very few business models
18 that allow the business to use its revenue strength,
19 to ask its customers to use less of its product and
20 stay in business. This only happens with monopolies
21 and with a company that's in bed with the federal
22 government and willing to stay with the federal
23 government rather than support its customers. The
24 EPA, as I said, unconstitutionally regulated what
25 it's doing and it's following through. It's

1 supposedly putting in more onerous regulations, thus
2 we see 185 million requested by Ameren. That was
3 the largest number I saw on that board today. And
4 that's all because of regulation. Not anything
5 that's having to be done with air quality is good as
6 it's ever been, within reason. Might not be in the
7 city. I don't know because I don't live in the
8 city. But I do know that my electricity rates have
9 about doubled since six years ago. And, frankly,
10 I'm tired of it. Okay. Every time I turn around
11 Ameren's asking for another rate increase and this
12 shows where it's coming from. Okay. I don't know
13 if you fellows have any ability to do anything about
14 it, but that's my opinion. I'll leave these with
15 you.

16 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, Mr. Wurth.

17 MR. WURTH: No. Thank you.

18 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Thanks four your
19 time, Mr. Worth.

20 JUDGE JONES: Okay. I'm going to mark
21 these as exhibits to be Union LPH 1 and Union LPH
22 2. I'll pass them to the attorneys and take a look
23 at them and we'll come back to their admissibility
24 after you all have had an opportunity to review
25 them. Next is Joe Davis.

1 MR. DAVIS: Good evening.

2 JOE DAVIS,

3 Of lawful age, produced, sworn and
4 examined, deposes and says:

5 MR. DAVIS: Okay. On July -- on
6 January 12th, my electric bill read as follows.
7 Usage; 3318, actual, with the rate of 1MSH. Now,
8 me not knowing what that means, I have no idea.
9 Simple math with a little adding and subtracting,
10 dividing, I come up with the total bill for my
11 electric use --

12 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Sir, can you talk
13 into the microphone?

14 MR. DAVIS: The total price of my electric
15 use for that month was 193.42 at the rate of .0583
16 per. On January 15th, my usage rate, or
17 usage was 3,056 actual, that come to .0622 per.
18 And that came to 227.53. Now, granted, there is a
19 difference in the two usage amounts but that's
20 reasonable. I understand that. On January 12th,
21 the fuel adjustment charge was \$6.23. On
22 January 15th, the fuel adjustment charge was
23 \$17.18. That is roughly 275 percent increase on
24 the fuel adjustment charge. On January 12th, the
25 energy efficiency program charge was \$1.33. On

1 January 15, the energy efficiency investment charge
2 was \$12.69. Now, that is roughly 954 percent
3 increase from what it was three years prior. That,
4 more or less, concludes what I have to say. Had a
5 question to follow, but that can't be answered, so
6 thank you.

7 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, Mr. Davis.

8 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: If you have,
9 Mr. Davis, just to remind you, Ameren's here and
10 our staff is here and they can answer any questions
11 that you have. Thank you.

12 JUDGE JONES: Next listed is Russell
13 McCreary.

14 MR. TOMC: Your Honor, on behalf of the
15 company, there's no objection to the inclusion of
16 those exhibits for tonight's hearing transcript.

17 JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

18 MS. PAYNE: No objections from staff
19 counsel.

20 JUDGE JONES: Seeing no objections, then
21 we'll let those exhibits into the record.

22 (Exhibits 1 and 2 admitted into evidence.)

23 RUSSELL McCREARY,

24 Of lawful age, produced, sworn and
25 examined, deposes and says:

1 MR. McCREARY: Little introduction of who I
2 am. My name's Russell McCreary. I live at 1649
3 Hackberry, just the other side of Union here.
4 Resident of Franklin County for over 20 years and
5 lifelong resident of Missouri. I'm a member of the
6 Knights of Columbus Council 1576 in Union and
7 served on the board of that council for eight years
8 as well as past and served on the Franklin County
9 4H Fair board for many years to the liaison to the
10 board as a member of the Franklin County Democrat
11 Club. I'm a member of the Franklin County Labor
12 Club. I was den father when my boys were in the
13 Cub Scouts. So I've been actively involved in the
14 community for quite a while. I'm also serving as
15 my first -- my first full term as commissioner on
16 the planning and zoning commission here in Franklin
17 County. Lastly, I'm a proud member of IBEW Local
18 1439. I serve as political registrar for the local
19 so I do keep aware of actions and laws that affect
20 my union brothers and sisters, my employer as well
21 as my customers, such as last year's Miranda
22 ruling. My work history, to let you know that I
23 know what I'm talking about, from 1980 to 1988 I
24 worked for contractors. I worked in several states
25 from Mississippi, Arkansas, Iowa, Kansas, New

1 Jersey, as well as many places in Missouri. I
2 worked on steel towers, new substations, addition
3 substations, H fixtures, transmission lines,
4 distribution lines throughout Missouri, underground
5 power lines from feeder surges to street lines.
6 Lines I worked on feed to the Truman building there
7 in Jeff City. Union Station, the traffic signals
8 down around there. I also helped install and
9 update navigational lights on the Grand Glaize
10 Bridge at Lake of the Ozarks and the Poplar Street
11 Bridge as well as Cannon Dam at Mark Twain Lake. I
12 hired in at UE back in March of 1988. I worked at
13 the Ellisville Overhead Work Center and then moved
14 to Berkeley in North County at Dorsett
15 headquarters. Presently I returned to Ellisville.
16 When I worked at UE, things were very different
17 when I started. You'd show up for work, load your
18 lunch, go out to the job. There's a wooden box
19 behind the truck with all material needed for the
20 day because there was a delivery that night. Now
21 we only get two deliveries a week, at best. That
22 cuts down on people and fuel costs. Today it's
23 much different. You still load your lunch, but
24 then you exercise the boot, DOT inspect the truck,
25 and then find out what utility you need and go load

1 it. All over Missouri, there's fewer employees at
2 each headquarters. In Ellisville, there were over
3 80 people that went out every day. However, we've
4 been downsized to 23. Ellisville's district is
5 just east of here and there's over 70,000 customers
6 in that district. When I started at Ellisville, we
7 had 13 mechanics. We now have two. The union
8 garage, which serves this area of Franklin County,
9 is always dependent on local contractors to work on
10 their trucks. When they can't fix them, they go
11 down to St. Louis, therefore the trucks are out of
12 action for a while.

13 When I hired in, you had to have a
14 journeyman's ticket and a chauffeur's license. That
15 was it. Today, you have to have a Class ACL
16 license. We are certified for asbestos cleanup, PCB
17 cleanup, shoring and trenching competency, MODOT
18 work site setup, first aid certified, and close
19 space trained. And I carry a ten-hour OSHA training
20 card as well as having a journeyman's ticket.

21 The job of being a lineman has become
22 a lot more complicated. Last year we took a poll of
23 our members. We found that over 69 percent were
24 over the age of 40. 49 percent over 50. And
25 33 percent could walk out the door today. I myself

1 is in that last group as far as environment. That's
2 just in our local, which includes mechanics,
3 storeroom keepers, troublemen, substation operators,
4 traveling operators, feeder men, radio technicians,
5 truck drivers, and many more. We found similar
6 members in other locals. I'd like to point out it
7 costs a lot less money and time to keep current on
8 all these qualifications than it does to initially
9 train a person in that. So that alone will cost
10 more as new workers replace retirees.

11 When I came here, you could wear
12 whatever you wanted when you went to work. Now we
13 have to wear fire-retardant clothing, OSHA approved.
14 This year, new regulations have come down from OSHA
15 and it will cost more. Our annual allowance is
16 \$225. It's gone up to \$800. We have new technology
17 to help us do our job more safely; battery-operated
18 presses and cutting tools as well as
19 battery-operated drills or rattle guns. These
20 replace hydraulic tools that couldn't be used away
21 from their truck. These are much more ergonomic
22 than the old manual tools, reducing injuries and
23 thus saving money on down time when someone's out
24 with a work-related injury. Everyone who goes out
25 on a storm is issued one of these; personal voltage

1 detector. A few years back, a good friend of mine,
2 a former crew member and a neighbor, and best man at
3 my wedding, was working as a troubleman in Dorsett
4 District. It was the third day of the storm
5 restoration effort, his first job of the day. When
6 he was going into a back yard to see where a line
7 was down, he inadvertently touched a small conductor
8 that was still energized and ended his life. As it
9 was, the wire broke, was hanging just a few feet off
10 the ground. A similar accident happened years
11 earlier right here in this district with the same
12 outcome. This PVD cost over \$120, but who knows how
13 many lives it saved.

14 We also have several other new tools;
15 body belts. When you're in the bucket, used to have
16 a body belt around, now we have harnesses and they
17 have to be flame retardant, but we went from a fall
18 arrest system, which allowed you to fall out of the
19 bucket and stopped you, to a fall restraint system.
20 That all cost a lot more money than what it used to.
21 We have climbing belts that if you cut out you could
22 slide down the pole. We now have a BuckSqueeze.
23 Those are hundreds of dollars apiece for each
24 person. We've recently invested in a new generation
25 of rubber gloves to cut down in carpal tunnel.

1 That's a big investment. We also have back yard
2 machines called E-Z Haulers. Used to have to climb
3 a pole and use sticks eight feet away to do anything
4 high. Now we have a back yard machine, which will
5 go through a three foot gate, not only set the pole,
6 but you can put buckets on it and go up and do
7 everything live. We also have many trackhoes that
8 will do the same thing. As opposed to going into
9 the back yard to dig up a cable, now we can take our
10 little trackhoe in and say it's a lot quicker and a
11 lot faster. All these cost more money. Before
12 anyone thinks this is big government getting in the
13 way with job-killing regulations, I would like to
14 say, I'm glad I don't see my fellow workers dying in
15 mid life with some mysterious lung disease, or see
16 some of our members' kids being born with birth
17 defects followed by some unknown reason. I know I'd
18 rather live with job-killing regulations than people
19 killing jobs. And there's just a few changes that
20 occurred during my career. I haven't even touched
21 on the age of our network and transmission. That's
22 their job. I don't know if ten percent is a correct
23 amount or not in this rate case. I know many
24 factors go in the decision on return on investment,
25 operate maintenance, capital expenses, and many

1 other criteria. At this time I would like to thank
2 you for your time that you have taken to hear public
3 input on this rate case. I'd also like to thank the
4 customers and my neighbors in Franklin County for
5 allowing me to have a good job with the lifestyle
6 that I've been able to have. One that over the
7 years let us rear three children here in Union and
8 allowed me to give back to the community by being
9 able to volunteer for these various civic
10 organizations and help make this a great place to
11 live. It has allowed me through hard work to
12 achieve the American dream. Truly, I thank you all.

13 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, sir.

14 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: No questions, but
15 thanks very much for your thoughtful and definitely
16 wordy testimony. We really appreciate it.

17 MR. McCREARY: I'd also like to submit an
18 overview of our poll for the age of the work force.

19 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Thanks, Mr. McCreary.

20 JUDGE JONES: LPH 3 and pass it to the
21 attorneys for viewing it and we'll talk about its
22 admissibility. Next listed is Julie McCollum.
23 Julie McCollum? Raise your right hand, please.

24 JULIE MCCOLLUM,

25 Of lawful age, produced, sworn and

1 examined, deposes and says:

2 MS. McCOLLUM: My name is Julie McCollum
3 and I'm not nothing special but I work in Missouri
4 and I've been here for a few years. What I really
5 don't get, I know business and I know business has
6 to make a profit and the gentleman from Ameren was
7 very nice in what we -- how much they made in 2013.
8 They make ten percent and Ameren Missouri made
9 \$398 million. I think that was correct, what he
10 told me. And I don't understand the monopoly here,
11 why there isn't -- people have a chance to get
12 alternative energy. I think the solar system was a
13 wonderful example of how we could do alternative if
14 we wanted to get off the grid a little bit, but
15 they since took that away from people. So we don't
16 have a choice to pay extra. I got a printout of my
17 electric bill. They're very nice to do that, too.
18 And I've been sick, so it's been kind of high. My
19 electric bill, current, was \$463.41 for the month.
20 Once the rate comes in, it will be \$502.94. Since
21 then -- since I got this, I quit using my dryer and
22 I put my heat down. And last year my rate was high
23 because I was sick again.

24 My question is: Do I go without heat
25 or do I go without medication? I mean, that's just

1 a thought. Ten percent is an understandable profit,
2 I really do, but maybe their profit range and bottom
3 line should be dropped a little bit so people can
4 get a little bit extra money, because what's going
5 to happen is that people are going to stop getting
6 meds and milk and to unplug them and the more they
7 unplug them, the lower the rates, their bills are
8 going to go down, the less profit they're going to
9 get and the more they're going to come back to us
10 for raises because people are going to start
11 unplugging, because they have to. Because paychecks
12 hasn't went up, social security hasn't went up, and
13 my pay hasn't went up since I've been in Missouri.
14 So that's just my thought. Thank you. I have a
15 list if you want to see it, but I got a printout.

16 JUDGE JONES: A copy of your bill?

17 MS. McCOLLUM: Of my bills, yeah. It's up
18 to you.

19 JUDGE JONES: No, we don't.

20 MS. McCOLLUM: All right. Thank you.

21 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Thank you, ma'am.

22 JUDGE JONES: Next listed is Joy Cokley.

23 MR. COKLEY: Yeah, I don't have a lot of
24 respective figures.

25

1 JOY COKLEY, Jr.

2 Of lawful age, produced, sworn and
3 examined, deposes and says:

4 MR. COKLEY: The way I understand Ameren
5 wanting to get a nine and a half percent raise. I
6 do not think it should get any raise. It made a
7 profit last year and you're paying dividends. And
8 there are a few thousand seniors on fixed income
9 that you serve that got 1.4 percent in 2014. And
10 they got 1.7 percent this January. And you're
11 wanting a nine and a half percent raise. Some of
12 these people can hardly pay their electric bill
13 now. Also, young people, two of my grandchildren,
14 they're working on jobs that did pay 20 to \$30 an
15 hour. Now they're paying -- starting them off at
16 \$14 an hour, \$13 an hour. General Motors is, in
17 fact, starting people off over there -- there's
18 employees in there making \$30 an hour, the ones
19 starting are starting off about \$14 an hour. It
20 makes it hard for them to pay for an apartment, pay
21 their electric, and make a living. The businesses
22 that I have talked to say they're going to have to
23 raise the cost of their product. Eight, nine and a
24 half percent raise from Union Electric. I know
25 last month, I got -- I've lived in my home for 49

1 years and it has been updated. It's been
2 re-listed, re-insulated, and furnace has been
3 updated. My appliances have been updated. Last
4 month I got the highest electric bill that I ever
5 got in the last 49 years. So I don't know where
6 they're going with this. I know that we need to
7 have better efficiency, but I don't know if -- that
8 this is the time to do it. Because people are
9 having a hard time making it right here in
10 Missouri, today. Thank you.

11 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, sir.

12 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Thanks, Mr. Cokley.

13 JUDGE JONES: I can't read the next name
14 and it likes like Ray or Roy McClarence or
15 something?

16 MS. McCLANAHAN: I'm Mrs. Ray McClanahan.
17 I'll speak for both of us.

18 GEORGIANA McCLANAHAN,
19 Of lawful age, produced, sworn and
20 examined, deposes and says:

21 JUDGE JONES: Will you please spell your
22 last name?

23 MS. McCLANAHAN: M-C, capital
24 C-L-A-N-A-H-A-N -- and my name is Georgiana.

25 JUDGE JONES: Okay.

1 MS. McCLANAHAN: Okay. Just briefly, I
2 won't be more than five minutes, guys. I know
3 you're all kind of tired and we are, too. I can
4 remember being a young single parent in Wisconsin
5 and getting an electric bill for over \$400. It was
6 sheer terror. I thought I'm going to lose my home.
7 In the course of life, my path took me to Missouri.
8 I married, worked, and retired as a Registered
9 Nurse. My husband worked for a local steel
10 company. And we had, you know, pretty good income,
11 so we were able to custom build a 2,000 square foot
12 house, which was completed in 1989. I wanted to
13 make sure nothing like that, what I went through
14 with -- in Wisconsin ever happened to me again. We
15 built that house as energy efficient as it's
16 possible to build a house. Two-by-six walls, which
17 gives you another 40 percent of insulation in your
18 wall, 70 percent insulation in your ceiling. We
19 put two solar vents in the roof. We put
20 geothermal, a closed loop geothermal heating system
21 that cost almost \$15,000. We're on our second
22 geothermal heat pump. This was 24 years ago. In
23 1989, when that house was finished and we moved
24 into it -- we also used Tyvek house wrap. House
25 wrap is a standard thing in building houses today,

1 but in 1989 it was new. It would be impossible to
2 build a house any more energy efficient in that day
3 and age that would be cost efficient. Solar was
4 available, but it was just sky high. And we went
5 on the budget plan with Ameren. I've kept up all
6 my bills since we've owned the house. They have
7 doubled in 25 years. Now we are retired. We're on
8 a fixed income. As the last speaker said, the
9 COLA, our cost of living increases like
10 1.4 percent. Some years, in the past three, I
11 don't think we even got one. And Ameren wants a
12 ten percent. We were willing to dip into our
13 retirement funds to put a solar array on this
14 house, because it's our keeper house. We paid the
15 dues for it. We worked hard, a long career, to get
16 this house. And a lot of equity went into it and I
17 don't want to have to go through what I went
18 through in Wisconsin again. My last electric bill
19 was \$250. I guess that's a lot less than the
20 speaker who was 450, but it shouldn't be that way.
21 And I don't want to see it go any higher. We're
22 seniors. Give us a break. Thank you.

23 JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

24 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Thank you.

25 JUDGE JONES: Next is Eric Reichert.

1 ERIC REICHERT,

2 Of lawful age, produced, sworn and
3 examined, deposes and says:

4 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, sir. You may
5 proceed.

6 MR. REICHERT: It just seems like, you
7 know, maybe I'm going to say things that some
8 people won't, but this is all just like going
9 through the motions. Because this is one more
10 example of where we have a public utility company
11 and saying, Oh, my God, we need \$265 million or the
12 sky's going to fall. We have the Public Service
13 Commission coming back saying, well, no, maybe we
14 crunched the numbers and it looks like maybe 113
15 million would do it. We have Ameren admitting that
16 basically they want to get repaid for the rebates
17 they paid out so they could get -- qualify for
18 carbon tax credits so that they save money there
19 and it just goes a vicious circle and circle and
20 circle, but I guess since we can't really talk
21 anything concrete here, because everything's still
22 up in the open and this is just kind of like a
23 preliminary sort of hearing, it would be when is
24 the Public Service Commission finally going to say
25 that, time after time after time, when this utility

1 comes, it always has -- seemingly has much more
2 inflated figures than the Public Service Commission
3 comes up with. But, yet, I guess because of the
4 Senate bill and that all the rates can be passed on
5 to the rate payers, you guys really don't have a
6 choice. You can't go, you know, Ameren, we're
7 going to say no this time. And the next time you
8 come back, why don't you come back with figures
9 that have a basis in reality. But I understand
10 you're working under a disability because I don't
11 believe you have the enforcement authority to deny
12 them a rate increase. But just when is enough
13 going to be enough? 265, 113. And it's every time
14 there's a rate increase. So I would suggest if
15 there's any enforcement, tell them no one time,
16 just once.

17 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, sir.

18 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Thanks.

19 JUDGE JONES: Bob Welsch?

20 BOB WELSCH,

21 Of lawful age, produced, sworn and
22 examined, deposes and says:

23 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, sir. You may
24 proceed.

25 MR. WELSCH: I appreciate you guys being

1 here, letting us share with you our opinions and
2 information. I've never done anything like this.
3 So I didn't know how the procedure all flowed. So
4 going to have to bear with me for a little bit.
5 I'm not a great orator. I'm just a regular Joe
6 trying to get by. The Ameren bills that we get,
7 we're not on budget billing, everything is just
8 month by month. The house that we've lived in is
9 since the year 2000, and I kind of keep track of
10 invoices and bills and rates and things like that.
11 And I have a piece of paper here that I'd like to
12 share with you when I'm done. It's just a
13 spreadsheet that I put together. But basically
14 what it shows is I picked one month out of the
15 year. It was the happiest time of the year, from
16 December 5th or, you know, early December to
17 early January, when I might have Christmas lights
18 up and all that kind of stuff. And I take -- I
19 took the information off of my invoices of the
20 readings. Now, how the readings convert to
21 kilowatt hours, I have no idea. But I can take the
22 readings and come up with what my use is. And then
23 calculate what the dollar amount is that I'm being
24 charged. And from there I can come up with a total
25 dollar per usage. In December of 2007 to January

1 of 2008, I came up with a total dollar per usage of
2 .042 dollars per usage. Whatever the meter reading
3 thing is. And the year -- from December 6th of
4 2012 to January 10th of 2013, I have a rate of
5 .062. When I do the calculations of that, I come
6 up with an increase of 46.4 percent.

7 At the same time, I've gone to the
8 Consumer Price Index, all urban consumers, for the
9 Missouri/Illinois area. And the rate increase from
10 there has been 9.4 percent. 9.4 percent for all
11 urban consumers versus a 46 percent increase from
12 Ameren UE. Now, that's just, like I said, to the
13 2013 date. In 2015, my increase from the '08 base
14 that I've had and, you know, there may -- is
15 65 percent. Now, there may have been, you know,
16 this rider for the fuel adjustment charge. And
17 there may have been energy efficiency charges that
18 have been put on. But the bottom line is what I pay
19 and what I pay per meter tech. And the amount that
20 has got -- that mine has gone up is 65 percent from
21 2008 to 2015. And I, like some of the other folks,
22 would like to say, man, that's a lot of money and, I
23 mean, I like my energy, I know we've got more demand
24 with all the electronics and all that, but
25 65 percent when all urban consumers, Consumer Price

1 Index, comes in at 9.4 percent versus the 46 percent
2 for the same year? You know what I'm saying? I
3 just think you guys need to consider that because
4 the price that we pay per meter usage has just gone
5 up really high. So that's really all I got. Would
6 you like this?

7 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, Mr. Welsh. Sure.

8 MR. WELSCH: Just for your info, I tried to
9 put the blue number is my calculation and that ties
10 into there, the green number ties into there, and
11 these are the comparisons for the 2013 year. Okay?

12 JUDGE JONES: Thank you. I'll mark this as
13 Union LPH 4 and hand it over to the attorneys. Is
14 there any objection to Union LPH 3?

15 MR. TOMC: No, Your Honor.

16 JUDGE JONES: Are you just speaking for
17 yourself?

18 MS. PAYNE: There were no objections.

19 MS. BAKER: No objections from Public
20 Counsel.

21 (Exhibit 3 admitted into evidence.)

22 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, Mr. Welsh.

23 MR. WELSCH: I'd also like to say copies of
24 invoices and stuff like that, I'd give you my
25 contact information, be more than happy to share

1 anything with you guys.

2 JUDGE JONES: Thank you. Okay. We have
3 exhausted the list of those who have signed up to
4 give testimony this evening. Is there anyone here
5 who -- first hand is in the back.

6 MONITA SIMPSON,
7 Of lawful age, produced, sworn and
8 examined, deposes and says:

9 JUDGE JONES: Thank you and please state
10 your name for the record.

11 MS. SIMPSON: MY name is Monita,
12 M-O-N-I-T-A, Simpson, S-I-M-P-S-O-N.

13 JUDGE JONES: Thank you, Ms. Simpson. You
14 may proceed.

15 MS. SIMPSON: Okay. I've never been to one
16 of these meetings before. And I just have an
17 observation. Everybody up here has a nice
18 microphone, they're able to use it clearly. I'm
19 sitting near the back and we respectfully listened
20 to those people back there while they were
21 speaking. They're sitting back there playing with
22 their iPhones, chitchatting and enjoying their
23 time. Nobody here had a microphone to be adjusted.
24 I know they're adjustable. Clearly, you're not
25 interested in anything we have to say and I

1 apologize for wasting your time.

2 JUDGE JONES: And I saw a hand right here.
3 Please raise your right hand.

4 PATRICIA SCHUBA,
5 Of lawful age, produced, sworn and
6 examined, deposes and says:

7 JUDGE JONES: Thank you. Please state your
8 name for the court reporter.

9 MS. SCHUBA: My name is Patricia Schuba.
10 And I live in the eastern portion of this county,
11 Franklin, Missouri.

12 JUDGE JONES: Can you spell your last name,
13 please? You can take that microphone off.

14 MS. SCHUBA: Thank you. My name is
15 Patricia Schuba, S-C-H-U-B-A, and I, too, like many
16 people tonight, wanted to just come and support
17 that you're here and taking comments from the
18 public. But in the course of things, felt like I
19 needed to say a few words. Something that hasn't
20 been discussed tonight is the things that Ameren is
21 asking for payment for from the rate payers. And I
22 have to make the point that sometimes some of the
23 projects aren't in the interest of the public or
24 health and wellbeing of the public. And I think as
25 the Public Service Commission you should take that

1 into account. Namely some of the projects like
2 landfills that have been talked about a lot, in
3 Franklin County and in the region, pose risks to
4 drinking water and to people. So when we're asked
5 as rate payers, which all of us are, to pay for
6 that, I think the Public Service Commission should
7 take that under consideration.

8 If a company says that they're going
9 to switch to natural gas in the near future, are
10 these charges that they're asking for reimbursement
11 for reasonable charges? So I wanted to make that
12 point. I also think that there's an opportunity for
13 this company to show leadership and produce energy
14 in a safer manner. And in the long run at a lesser
15 expense than burning coal or burning gas or whatever
16 they -- might be the thing that we're doing now. So
17 I'd like to see the company take a leadership role
18 in suggesting other ways it can produce energy.
19 Certainly their investments in solar make sense. I
20 was one of those unfortunate people who applied for
21 the rebate under the solar program and that's not
22 going to happen for our family. So we made an
23 investment in that as a family and we're still
24 waiting to see if there's a possibility that we will
25 get that rebate. So we can reduce energy that

1 Ameren can turn around and sell for a profit because
2 we're not making a profit on that. So I just wanted
3 to put those things out that aren't negative. I
4 know there are some things said tonight about
5 regulations. Regulations are there to protect
6 people. And I worked in health care for a very long
7 time. And the cost of being exposed to things in
8 the environment is huge to society and it's huge to
9 individuals who incur those costs. In the form of
10 cancer, lung disease, and other things. So, I know
11 many of you care about that and I hope that you
12 consider it in looking at the charges that Ameren
13 asked for reimbursement for. Or for increases in
14 rates to cover. Scrubbers are good. They clean the
15 air. But landfills and water table are not. And
16 possibly other things that they want to do don't
17 make sense either. So thank you very much.

18 JUDGE JONES: Thank you.

19 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Thanks, Ms. Schuba.
20 Thanks for taking the time.

21 JUDGE JONES: Is there anyone else who
22 would like to testify who didn't sign up to do so?
23 Okay. I don't see a show of hands. So with that,
24 then, we will conclude the local public hearing.
25 Thank you all for coming out.

1 (Ending time of the hearing: 7:41 p.m.)

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

INDEX OF WITNESSES

	PAGE
1	
2 Mel Wurth	6
3 Joe Davis	10
4 Russell McCreary	11
5 Joy L. Cokley, Jr.	21
6 Ray McClanahan	22
7 Eric Reichert	25
8 Bob Welsch	26
9 Monita Simpson	30
10 Patricia Schuba	31

11	INDEX OF EXHIBITS	
12 Exhibit 1		11
13 Exhibit 2		11
14 Exhibit 3		29
15 (The original exhibits were retained by Judge		
16 Jones.)		

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

1 STATE OF MISSOURI)

2)SS

3 CITY OF ST. LOUIS)

4 I, Rebecca Brewer, Registered Professional
5 Reporter, Certified Real-time Reporter, and
6 Notary Public in and for the State of Missouri
7 do hereby certify that the witness whose
8 testimony appears in the foregoing hearing was
9 duly sworn by me; that the testimony of the
10 said witnesses was taken by me to the best of
11 my ability and thereafter reduced to
12 typewriting under my direction; that I am
13 neither counsel for, related to, nor employed
14 by any of the parties to the action in which
15 this deposition was taken, and further that I
16 am not relative or employee of any attorney or
17 counsel employed by the parties thereto, nor
18 financially or otherwise interested in the
19 outcome of the action.

20 _____ RPR, MO-CCR,
21 Notary Public within and for the State of Missouri

22
23
24
25

A	18:5 alternative 19:12 19:13 Ameren 1:12 2:2 2:3 4:2,5 8:16 9:2 19:6,8 21:4 24:5,11 25:15 26:6 27:6 28:12 31:20 33:1,12 Ameren's 9:11 11:9 American 18:12 amount 17:23 27:23 28:19 amounts 10:19 annual 8:11 15:15 answer 6:7,14 11:10 answered 3:6 11:5 apartment 21:20 apiece 16:23 apologize 31:1 appearances 4:1 appearing 4:4,11 appears 36:8 appliances 22:3 applied 32:20 appreciate 5:1,15 18:16 26:25 approved 15:13 area 14:8 28:9 Arkansas 12:25 array 24:13 arrest 16:18 asbestos 14:16 asked 7:10 8:15 32:4 33:13 asking 9:11 31:21 32:10 ASSISTANT 2:13 attorney 36:16 attorneys 9:22 18:21 29:13 authority 26:11	available 24:4 Avenue 2:4 aware 12:19	B	board 9:3 12:7,9 12:10 Bob 26:19,20 35:8 body 16:15,16 boot 13:24 born 17:16 bottom 20:2 28:18 box 2:4,9,14 4:10 13:18 boys 12:12 break 24:22 Brewer 1:24 2:17 36:4 Bridge 13:10,11 briefly 4:21 23:1 broke 16:9 brothers 12:20 bucked 8:5 bucket 16:15,19 buckets 17:6 BuckSqueeze 16:22 budget 24:5 27:7 build 23:11,16 24:2 building 13:6 23:25 built 23:15 Bureau 8:4,7 burning 32:15,15 business 4:5 8:17 8:18,20 19:5,5 businesses 21:21	cap 7:11 capital 17:25 22:23 carbon 25:18 card 14:20 care 33:6,11 career 17:20 24:15 carpal 16:25 carry 14:19 case 5:12 6:9 17:23 18:3 ceiling 23:18 Center 13:13 Certainly 32:19 certified 14:16 14:18 36:5 certify 36:7 chairman 1:19 4:17,19 chance 19:11 changes 17:19 charge 10:21,22 10:24,25 11:1 28:16 charged 27:24 charges 28:17 32:10,11 33:12 chauffeur's 14:14 CHIEF 1:17 children 18:7 chitchatting 30:22 choice 19:16 26:6 Chouteau 2:4 Christina 2:7 4:9 christina.bake... 2:10 Christmas 27:17 Chronicle 7:6,7,9 circle 25:19,19 25:20 city 2:9,14 4:10 9:7,8 13:7 36:3 civic 18:9 Class 14:15
ability 9:13 36:11 able 3:15 5:5 18:6,9 23:11 30:18 accident 16:10 account 5:11 32:1 achieve 18:12 ACL 14:15 action 14:12 36:14,19 actions 12:19 actively 12:13 actual 10:7,17 adding 10:9 addition 13:2 address 3:9 adjustable 30:24 adjusted 30:23 adjustment 10:21,22,24 28:16 admissibility 9:23 18:22 admitted 11:22 29:21 admitting 25:15 advocated 7:18 affect 12:19 age 6:25 10:3 11:24 14:24 17:21 18:18,25 21:2 22:19 24:3 25:2 26:21 30:7 31:5 ago 7:23 9:9 23:22 ahead 3:3 aid 14:18 air 9:5 33:15 allow 8:18 allowance 15:15 allowed 6:6 7:17 16:18 18:8,11 allowing 7:20	back 7:6 9:23 13:12 16:1,6 17:1,4,9 18:8 20:9 25:13 26:8 26:8 30:5,19,20 30:21 bad 5:24 Baker 2:7 4:9,9 29:19 bankrupt 7:8 Barack 7:7 base 28:13 basically 25:16 27:13 basis 26:9 battery-operated 15:17,19 bear 27:4 bed 8:21 beginning 4:1 behalf 4:4,11,15 5:17 11:14 believe 26:11 belt 16:16 belts 16:15,21 Berkeley 13:14 best 13:21 16:2 36:10 better 22:7 big 17:1,12 bill 8:15 10:6,10 19:17,19 20:16 21:12 22:4 23:5 24:18 26:4 billing 27:7 bills 20:7,17 24:6 27:6,10 birth 17:16 bit 19:14 20:3,4 27:4 BLS 8:12 blue 29:9	C	C 2:1 3:1 cable 17:9 calculate 27:23 calculated 8:4 calculation 29:9 calculations 28:5 called 6:21 17:2 cancer 33:10 candidate 7:7 Cannon 13:11		

clean 33:14	2:3 4:5 5:24 6:1	4:8,11 6:13	declined 8:5	dream 18:12
cleanup 14:16,17	6:14 8:21 11:15	11:19 12:7	defects 17:17	drills 15:19
clearly 30:18,24	23:10 25:10	29:20 36:13,17	definitely 18:15	drinking 32:4
climb 17:2	32:8,13,17	county 12:4,8,10	deliberate 5:12	drivers 15:5
climbing 16:21	comparisons	12:11,17 13:14	deliveries 13:21	dropped 20:3
close 6:20 14:18	29:11	14:8 18:4 31:10	delivery 13:20	dryer 19:21
closed 23:20	competency	32:3	demand 28:23	duck 7:12
clothing 15:13	14:17	couple 7:5	Democrat 12:10	dues 24:15
Club 12:11,12	completed 23:12	course 23:7	den 12:12	duly 36:9
CNS 8:1	complicated	31:18	deny 26:11	dying 17:14
coal 7:8,10 32:15	14:22	court 2:17 5:8	dependent 14:9	d/b/a 1:11 2:3
Cokley 20:22,23	concerns 3:9	31:8	deposes 7:1 10:4	
21:1,4 22:12	conclude 33:24	cover 33:14	11:25 19:1 21:3	E
35:5	concluded 5:13	credits 25:18	22:20 25:3	E 2:1,1 3:1,1
COLA 24:9	5:13	crew 16:2	26:22 30:8 31:6	earlier 3:10 7:10
Columbus 12:6	concludes 11:4	criteria 18:1	deposition 36:15	16:11
come 3:14 5:2	concrete 25:21	CRR 1:24	Deputy 2:8	early 27:16,17
9:23 10:10,17	conductor 16:7	crunched 25:14	detector 16:1	east 14:5
15:14 20:9 26:8	Congress 7:18	Cub 12:13	difference 10:19	eastern 31:10
26:8 27:22,24	consider 29:3	current 15:7	different 13:16	efficiency 10:25
28:5 31:16	33:12	19:19	13:23	11:1 22:7 28:17
comes 19:20 26:1	consideration	custom 23:11	dig 17:9	efficient 23:15
26:3 29:1	32:7	customer 5:23	dip 24:12	24:2,3
coming 9:12	constitution 7:17	customers 4:12	directed 3:7	effort 16:5
25:13 33:25	construed 6:8	8:19,23 12:21	direction 36:12	eight 12:7 17:3
comment 6:2	Consumer 28:8	14:5 18:4	disability 26:10	21:23
comments 5:11	28:25	cut 16:21,25	discussed 31:20	either 3:18 33:17
5:23 6:4,16	consumers 28:8	cuts 13:22	disease 17:15	electric 1:11,14
31:17	28:11,25	cutting 15:18	33:10	2:3 4:4 10:6,11
commission 1:2	contact 29:25	C-L-A-N-A-H...	distribution 13:4	10:14 19:17,19
2:12 4:14,16,18	contractors	22:24	district 14:4,6	21:12,21,24
5:17 12:16	12:24 14:9		16:4,11	22:4 23:5 24:18
25:13,24 26:2	contribution	D	dividends 21:7	electricity 7:11
31:25 32:6	5:16	D 3:1	dividing 10:10	8:5,8,11,12 9:8
commissioner	convert 27:20	Dam 13:11	doing 4:5 7:16	electronics 28:24
4:19,21 5:20,21	copies 29:23	data 8:6	8:25 32:16	Eleventh 2:18
6:6 9:18 10:12	copy 20:16	date 28:13	dollar 27:23,25	Ellisville 13:13
11:8 12:15	correct 17:22	Davis 9:25 10:1,2	28:1	13:15 14:2,6
18:14,19 20:21	19:9	10:5,14 11:7,9	dollars 16:23	Ellisville's 14:4
22:12 24:24	cost 15:9,15	35:3	28:2	employed 36:13
26:18 33:19	16:12,20 17:11	day 13:20 14:3	door 14:25	36:17
commissioners	21:23 23:21	16:4,5 24:2	Dorsett 13:14	employee 36:16
1:21 3:18 5:5,9	24:3,9 33:7	deal 5:23	16:3	employees 14:1
6:5 7:4	costs 13:22 15:7	December 8:9	DOT 13:24	21:18
community	33:9	27:16,16,25	double 7:22	employer 12:20
12:14 18:8	Council 12:6	28:3	doubled 9:9 24:7	ended 16:8
company 1:11	counsel 2:7,8,13	decision 17:24	downsized 14:4	energized 16:8

<p>energy 8:3 10:25 11:1 19:12 23:15 24:2 28:17,23 32:13 32:18,25 enforcement 26:11,15 enjoying 30:22 entries 4:1 environment 15:1 33:8 EPA 7:14,17 8:24 equity 24:16 ergonomic 15:21 Eric 24:25 25:1 35:7 ER-2014-0258 1:12 evening 10:1 30:4 everybody 4:22 30:17 everything's 25:21 evidence 11:22 29:21 examined 7:1 10:4 11:25 19:1 21:3 22:20 25:3 26:22 30:8 31:6 example 19:13 25:10 exercise 13:24 exhaust 3:24 exhausted 30:3 Exhibit 29:21 35:12,13,14 exhibits 9:21 11:16,21,22 35:11,15 expense 32:15 expenses 17:25 expensive 8:10 exposed 33:7 extra 19:16 20:4 E-Z 17:2</p>	<hr/> <p>F</p> <hr/> <p>fact 21:17 factors 17:24 Fair 12:9 fall 16:17,18,19 25:12 family 32:22,23 far 15:1 faster 17:11 father 12:12 February 5:14 federal 7:14 8:21 8:22 feed 13:6 feeder 13:5 15:4 feel 7:12 feet 16:9 17:3 fellow 17:14 fellows 9:13 felt 31:18 fewer 14:1 fighting 7:13,14 figures 20:24 26:2,8 finally 25:24 financially 36:18 find 5:15 13:25 finished 23:23 fire-retardant 15:13 first 3:13 6:18 12:15,15 14:18 16:5 30:5 five 5:4 23:2 fix 14:10 fixed 21:8 24:8 fixtures 13:3 flame 16:17 flowed 27:3 folks 28:21 follow 11:5 followed 17:17 following 8:25 follows 10:6 foot 8:15 17:5 23:11 force 18:18</p>	<p>foregoing 36:8 form 33:9 former 16:2 forward 5:18 6:15 found 8:17 14:23 15:5 four 9:18 Francisco 7:6,9 Franklin 12:4,8 12:10,11,16 14:8 18:4 31:11 32:3 frankly 9:9 Free 8:1 friend 16:1 fuel 10:21,22,24 13:22 28:16 full 12:15 funds 24:13 furnace 22:2 further 36:15 future 32:9</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">G</p> <hr/> <p>G 3:1 garage 14:8 gas 32:9,15 gasoline 8:2 gate 17:5 General 21:16 generation 16:24 gentleman 19:6 Georgiana 22:18 22:24 geothermal 23:20,20,22 getting 7:25 17:12 20:5 23:5 give 3:4,12,23 18:8 24:22 29:24 30:4 gives 23:17 glad 17:14 Glaize 13:9 gloves 16:25 go 3:2 13:18,25</p>	<p>14:10 17:5,6,24 19:24,25 20:8 24:17,21 26:6 God 25:11 goes 15:24 25:19 going 3:2,13 7:5 9:20 16:6 17:8 20:4,5,8,8,9,10 21:22 22:6 23:6 25:7,8,12,24 26:7,13 27:4 32:8,22 good 5:24 9:5 10:1 16:1 18:5 23:10 33:14 gotten 3:5 government 7:14 8:22,23 17:12 Grand 13:9 grandchildren 21:13 granted 10:18 great 5:20 18:10 27:5 green 29:10 grid 19:14 ground 16:10 group 15:1 guess 24:19 25:20 26:3 guns 15:19 guys 23:2 26:5,25 29:3 30:1</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">H</p> <hr/> <p>H 13:3 Hackberry 12:3 half 21:5,11,24 hand 6:23 18:23 29:13 30:5 31:2 31:3 hands 3:24 33:23 hanging 16:9 happen 20:5 32:22 happened 16:10 23:14</p>	<p>happens 8:20 happiest 27:15 happy 29:25 hard 18:11 21:20 22:9 24:15 harnesses 16:16 Haulers 17:2 headquarters 13:15 14:2 health 31:24 33:6 hear 5:25 18:2 hearing 1:5 3:12 5:10,13,18 6:15 11:16 25:23 33:24 34:1 36:8 hearings 4:23 heat 19:22,24 23:22 heating 23:20 help 15:17 18:10 helped 13:8 high 17:4 19:18 19:22 24:4 29:5 higher 24:21 highest 22:4 highs 8:9 hired 13:12 14:13 history 12:22 hit 8:8 home 21:25 23:6 Honor 4:3 11:14 29:15 hope 3:5 33:11 hour 21:15,16,16 21:18,19 hours 27:21 house 23:12,15 23:16,23,24,24 24:2,6,14,14,16 27:8 houses 23:25 huge 33:8,8 hundreds 16:23 husband 23:9 hydraulic 15:20</p>
--	--	---	---	--

I	<p>investment 11:1 17:1,24 32:23</p> <p>investments 32:19</p> <p>invoices 27:10,19 29:24</p> <p>involved 12:13</p> <p>Iowa 12:25</p> <p>iPhones 30:22</p> <p>issue 7:10</p> <p>issued 15:25</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">J</p> <p>January 1:6 8:2 10:6,16,20,22 10:24 11:1 21:10 27:17,25 28:4</p> <p>Jeff 13:7</p> <p>Jefferson 2:9,14 4:10</p> <p>Jersey 13:1</p> <p>job 7:20 13:18 14:21 15:17 16:5 17:22 18:5</p> <p>jobs 17:19 21:14</p> <p>job-killing 17:13 17:18</p> <p>Joe 9:25 10:2 27:5 35:3</p> <p>Jones 1:16 3:2,10 4:7,13,17 6:17 6:22 7:2 9:16 9:20 11:7,12,17 11:20 18:13,20 20:16,19,22 22:11,13,21,25 24:23,25 25:4 26:17,19,23 29:7,12,16,22 30:2,9,13 31:2 31:7,12 33:18 33:21 35:16</p> <p>journeyman's 14:14,20</p> <p>Joy 20:22 21:1 35:5</p>	<p>Jr 21:1 35:5</p> <p>judge 1:17 3:2,10 4:7,13,17,22 5:7 6:17,22 7:2 9:16,20 11:7,12 11:17,20 18:13 18:20 20:16,19 20:22 22:11,13 22:21,25 24:23 24:25 25:4 26:17,19,23 29:7,12,16,22 30:2,9,13 31:2 31:7,12 33:18 33:21 35:15</p> <p>Julie 18:22,23,24 19:2</p> <p>July 10:5</p> <p>J.D 2:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">K</p> <p>Kansas 12:25</p> <p>keep 12:19 15:7 27:9</p> <p>keeper 24:14</p> <p>keepers 15:3</p> <p>Kennard 1:16 3:10</p> <p>Kenney 1:19 4:18,21 6:6 9:18 10:12 11:8 18:14,19 20:21 22:12 24:24 26:18 33:19</p> <p>kept 24:5</p> <p>kids 17:16</p> <p>killing 17:19</p> <p>kilowatt 27:21</p> <p>kind 19:18 23:3 25:22 27:9,18</p> <p>Knights 12:6</p> <p>know 5:22 6:1,3 9:7,8,12 12:22 12:23 17:17,22 17:23 19:5,5 21:24 22:5,6,7 23:2,10 25:7</p>	<p>26:6 27:3,16 28:14,15,23 29:2 30:24 33:4 33:10</p> <p>knowing 10:8</p> <p>knows 16:12</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">L</p> <p>L 35:5</p> <p>Labor 8:4,7 12:11</p> <p>Lake 13:10,11</p> <p>landfills 32:2 33:15</p> <p>largest 9:3</p> <p>Lastly 12:17</p> <p>LAW 1:17</p> <p>lawful 6:25 10:3 11:24 18:25 21:2 22:19 25:2 26:21 30:7 31:5</p> <p>laws 12:19</p> <p>lazy 7:19</p> <p>leadership 32:13 32:17</p> <p>leave 7:24 9:14</p> <p>left 4:18</p> <p>legislation 7:18</p> <p>lesser 32:14</p> <p>letting 27:1</p> <p>Let's 6:17</p> <p>liaison 12:9</p> <p>license 14:14,16</p> <p>life 16:8 17:15 23:7</p> <p>lifelong 12:5</p> <p>lifestyle 18:5</p> <p>lights 13:9 27:17</p> <p>likes 22:14</p> <p>line 16:6 20:3 28:18</p> <p>lineman 14:21</p> <p>lines 13:3,4,5,5,6</p> <p>list 3:3,21 20:15 30:3</p> <p>listed 11:12 18:22 20:22</p>	<p>listen 6:9</p> <p>listened 30:19</p> <p>Litigation 1:25 2:18</p> <p>little 10:9 12:1 17:10 19:14 20:3,4 27:4</p> <p>live 9:7 12:2 17:7 17:18 18:11 31:10</p> <p>lived 21:25 27:8</p> <p>lives 16:13</p> <p>living 21:21 24:9</p> <p>load 13:17,23,25</p> <p>local 1:5 3:11 4:23 5:10 12:17 12:18 14:9 15:2 23:9 33:24</p> <p>locals 15:6</p> <p>long 24:15 32:14 33:6</p> <p>look 5:18 6:15 9:22</p> <p>looking 33:12</p> <p>looks 8:14 25:14</p> <p>loop 23:20</p> <p>lose 23:6</p> <p>lot 14:22 15:7 16:20 17:10,11 20:23 24:16,19 28:22 32:2</p> <p>Louis 2:5,19 4:6 14:11 36:3</p> <p>lower 20:7</p> <p>LPH 9:21,21 18:20 29:13,14</p> <p>lunch 13:18,23</p> <p>lung 17:15 33:10</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">M</p> <p>machine 17:4</p> <p>machines 17:2</p> <p>Madison 2:8,13</p> <p>maintenance 17:25</p> <p>making 5:12 21:18 22:9 33:2</p>
----------	--	---	---	--

man 16:2 28:22	25:11,15	31:8,9,12,14	Okay 3:2 6:17	pause 3:16
manner 32:14	mine 16:1 28:20	name's 12:2	7:12,16,18,23	pay 7:21 19:16
manual 15:22	minutes 23:2	natural 32:9	7:25 8:14,16	20:13 21:12,14
March 13:12	Miranda 12:21	navigational	9:10,12,20 10:5	21:20,20 28:18
mark 9:20 13:11	Mississippi 12:25	13:9	22:25 23:1	28:19 29:4 32:5
29:12	Missouri 1:1,7	near 30:19 32:9	29:11 30:2,15	paychecks 20:11
married 23:8	2:3,5,9,11,14	necessarily 7:12	33:23	payers 6:2 26:5
material 13:19	2:19 4:2,5,6,10	need 13:25 22:6	old 15:22	31:21 32:5
math 10:9	12:5 13:1,4	25:11 29:3	once 19:20 26:16	paying 21:7,15
Matter 1:10	14:1 19:3,8	needed 13:19	onerous 9:1	payment 31:21
Matthew 2:3 4:3	20:13 22:10	31:19	ones 21:18	Payne 2:12 4:15
ma'am 20:21	23:7 31:11 36:1	negative 5:6,25	open 25:22	4:15 11:18
McCLANAHAN	36:6,21	33:3	operate 17:25	29:18
22:16,16,18,23	Missouri's 1:12	neighbor 16:2	operators 15:3,4	PCB 14:16
23:1 35:6	Missouri/Illinois	neighbors 18:4	opinion 9:14	people 3:4,7,12
McClarence	28:9	neither 36:13	opinions 27:1	3:24 13:22 14:3
22:14	models 8:17	network 17:21	opportunity 3:23	17:18 19:11,15
McCollum 18:22	MODOT 14:17	never 27:2 30:15	5:9 9:24 32:12	20:3,5,10 21:12
18:23,24 19:2,2	moment 3:16	new 12:25 13:2	opposed 17:8	21:13,17 22:8
20:17,20	money 15:7,23	15:10,14,16	orator 27:5	25:8 30:20
McCreary 11:13	16:20 17:11	16:14,24 24:1	organizations	31:16 32:4,20
11:23 12:1,2	20:4 25:18	News 8:1	18:10	33:6
18:17,19 35:4	28:22	nice 19:7,17	original 35:15	percent 10:23
mean 19:25	Monita 30:6,11	30:17	OSHA 14:19	11:2 14:23,24
28:23	35:9	night 4:25 13:20	15:13,14	14:25 17:22
means 10:8	monopolies 8:20	nine 3:12 21:5,11	outcome 16:12	19:8 20:1 21:5
mechanics 14:7	monopoly 7:13	21:23	36:19	21:9,10,11,24
15:2	19:10	North 13:14	outside 6:14	23:17,18 24:10
medication 19:25	month 8:9 10:15	Notary 36:6,21	overall 8:3	24:12 28:6,10
meds 20:6	19:19 21:25	number 9:3 29:9	Overhead 13:13	28:10,11,15,20
meetings 30:16	22:4 27:8,8,14	29:10	overview 18:18	28:25 29:1,1
Mel 6:18,24 35:2	motions 25:9	numbers 25:14	owned 24:6	person 3:14,20
member 12:5,10	Motors 21:16	Nurse 23:9	Ozarks 13:10	15:9 16:24
12:11,17 16:2	move 3:20			personal 15:25
members 14:23	moved 13:13			perspective 5:3
15:6 17:16	23:23	O	P	picked 27:14
men 15:4	MO-CCR 36:20	O 3:1	P 2:1,1 3:1	piece 27:11
meter 28:2,19	mysterious 17:15	Obama 7:7	PAGE 35:1	place 18:10
29:4	M-C 22:23	objection 11:15	paid 24:14 25:17	places 13:1
microphone	M-O-N-I-T-A	29:14	paper 27:11	plan 7:10 8:14
10:13 30:18,23	30:12	objections 11:18	parent 23:4	24:5
31:13	N	11:20 29:18,19	part 4:25 5:1	planning 12:16
mid 17:15		observation	parties 36:14,17	playing 30:21
Midwest 1:25	N 2:1,18 3:1	30:17	pass 9:22 18:20	please 18:23
2:18	name 3:9 6:19	occurred 17:20	passed 26:4	22:21 30:9 31:3
milk 20:6	19:2 22:13,22	office 2:7 4:7,11	path 23:7	31:7,13
million 9:2 19:9	22:24 30:10,11	6:13	Patricia 31:4,9	plummeted 8:3
		Oh 25:11	31:15 35:10	

<p>podium 3:14 point 15:6 31:22 32:12 pole 16:22 17:3,5 political 12:18 poll 14:22 18:18 Poplar 13:10 portion 31:10 pose 6:7,11 32:3 positive 5:25 possibility 32:24 possible 23:16 possibly 33:16 posted 8:1 power 7:19 13:5 prejudging 6:8 preliminary 25:23 Presently 13:15 president 7:15 president's 8:14 presiding 1:16 3:11 presses 15:18 pretty 23:10 price 7:21 8:3,8 8:11 10:14 28:8 28:25 29:4 prices 8:2,5 printout 19:16 20:15 prior 11:3 procedure 27:3 proceed 7:3 25:5 26:24 30:14 PROCEEDIN... 1:4 process 4:25 5:1 5:16 produce 32:13,18 produced 6:25 10:3 11:24 18:25 21:2 22:19 25:2 26:21 30:7 31:5 product 8:19 21:23</p>	<p>Professional 36:4 profit 19:6 20:1,2 20:8 21:7 33:1 33:2 program 10:25 32:21 projects 31:23 32:1 pronounce 6:18 proof 7:24 protect 33:5 proud 12:17 PSC 6:12 public 1:2,5 2:7,8 2:11 3:11 4:7 4:11,13,16,23 5:10 6:13 18:2 25:10,12,24 26:2 29:19 31:18,23,24,25 32:6 33:24 36:6 36:21 published 8:12 pump 23:22 purpose 7:16 put 17:6 19:22 23:19,19 24:13 27:13 28:18 29:9 33:3 putting 9:1 PVD 16:12 P.E 2:7 p.m 34:1 P.O 2:4,9,14 4:10</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">Q</p> <p>qualifications 15:8 qualify 25:17 quality 9:5 question 3:19 11:5 19:24 questions 3:5,7,8 6:7,10,12 11:10 18:14 quicker 17:10 quit 19:21</p>	<p>quite 12:14 quotes 7:5</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">R</p> <p>R 2:1,3 3:1 4:4 radio 15:4 raise 6:22 18:23 21:5,6,11,23,24 31:3 raises 20:10 range 20:2 rate 6:1 9:11 10:7,15,16 17:23 18:3 19:20,22 26:5 26:12,14 28:4,9 31:21 32:5 rates 7:11,21 9:8 20:7 26:4 27:10 33:14 rattle 15:19 Ray 22:14,16 35:6 read 5:6 7:5 10:6 22:13 reading 28:2 readings 27:20 27:20,22 reality 26:9 really 18:16 19:4 20:2 25:20 26:5 29:5,5 Real-time 36:5 rear 18:7 reason 9:6 17:17 reasonable 10:20 32:11 rebate 32:21,25 rebates 25:16 Rebecca 1:24 2:17 36:4 record 7:16 11:21 30:10 reduce 32:25 reduced 36:11 reducing 15:22 region 32:3</p>	<p>Registered 23:8 36:4 registrar 12:18 regular 27:5 regulated 8:24 regulation 9:4 regulations 9:1 15:14 17:13,18 33:5,5 REGULATORY 1:17 Reichert 24:25 25:1,6 35:7 reimbursement 32:10 33:13 related 36:13 relative 36:16 released 8:6 remarks 5:11 remember 23:4 remind 6:5 11:9 Reminder 3:16 repaid 25:16 replace 15:10,20 REPORTED 1:23 reporter 2:17 5:8 31:8 36:5,5 Republic 8:1 requested 9:2 resident 12:4,5 respectfully 30:19 respective 20:24 restoration 16:5 restraint 16:19 retained 35:15 retardant 16:17 retired 23:8 24:7 retirees 15:10 retirement 24:13 return 17:24 returned 13:15 revenue 8:18 Revenues 1:13 review 5:10 9:24 re-insulated 22:2</p>	<p>re-listed 22:2 rhetorical 6:11 rider 28:16 right 3:25 4:17 6:22 16:11 18:23 20:20 22:9 31:2,3 risks 32:3 Robert 1:19 4:18 role 6:9 32:17 roof 23:19 roughly 10:23 11:2 Roy 22:14 RPR 1:24 36:20 rubber 16:25 ruling 12:22 run 32:14 Rupp 1:20 4:19 5:20,21 Russell 11:12,23 12:2 35:4</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">S</p> <p>S 1:19 2:1 3:1 safely 15:17 safer 32:14 San 7:6,9 save 25:18 saved 16:13 saving 15:23 saw 9:3 31:2 saying 25:11,13 29:2 says 7:1 10:4 11:25 19:1 21:3 22:20 25:3 26:22 30:8 31:6 32:8 Schuba 31:4,9,9 31:14,15 33:19 35:10 Scott 1:20 4:19 5:21 Scouts 12:13 Scrubbers 33:14 seat 3:20</p>
---	---	---	---	--

<p>second 23:21 security 20:12 see 9:2 16:6 17:14,15 20:15 24:21 32:17,24 33:23 Seeing 11:20 seemingly 26:1 seen 7:21 sell 33:1 Senate 26:4 seniors 21:8 24:22 sense 32:19 33:17 serve 12:18 21:9 served 12:7,8 serves 14:8 service 1:2,14 2:11 4:14,16 5:23 25:12,24 26:2 31:25 32:6 Services 1:25 2:18 servicing 12:14 set 17:5 setup 14:18 share 5:2 27:1,12 29:25 sheer 23:6 shoring 14:17 show 3:24 13:17 32:13 33:23 shows 9:12 27:14 sick 19:18,23 side 3:18 12:3 sign 3:22 33:22 signals 13:7 signed 3:4,12 30:3 similar 15:5 16:10 Simple 10:9 Simpson 30:6,11 30:12,13,15 35:9 single 23:4 sir 6:20 7:2 10:12</p>	<p>18:13 22:11 25:4 26:17,23 sisters 12:20 site 14:18 sitting 3:18 30:19 30:21 six 7:23 9:9 sky 24:4 skyrocket 7:12 7:22 sky's 25:12 slide 16:22 small 16:7 social 20:12 society 33:8 solar 19:12 23:19 24:3,13 32:19 32:21 someone's 15:23 sort 25:23 space 14:19 speak 22:17 speaker 24:8,20 speaking 29:16 30:21 special 19:3 spell 22:21 31:12 spreadsheet 27:13 square 23:11 SS 36:2 St 2:5,19 4:5 14:11 36:3 staff 2:11,13 4:13 4:16 6:12 11:10 11:18 standard 23:25 start 3:13 20:10 started 3:3 6:17 13:17 14:6 starting 21:15,17 21:19,19 state 1:1 30:9 31:7 36:1,6,21 stated 7:7,9,15 statement 3:16 3:17,23,25</p>	<p>statements 4:20 states 8:6,11 12:24 Station 13:7 Statistics 8:4,7 stay 8:20,22 steel 13:2 23:9 sticks 17:3 stop 20:5 stopped 16:19 storeroom 15:3 storm 15:25 16:4 street 2:8,13,18 13:5,10 strength 8:18 stuff 27:18 29:24 submit 18:17 substation 15:3 substations 13:2 13:3 subtracting 10:9 suggest 26:14 suggesting 32:18 support 8:23 31:16 supposedly 9:1 sure 23:13 29:7 surges 13:5 swear 3:14 switch 32:9 sworn 6:25 10:3 11:24 18:25 21:2 22:19 25:2 26:21 30:7 31:5 36:9 system 7:11 16:18,19 19:12 23:20 S-C-H-U-B-A 31:15 S-I-M-P-S-O-N 30:12</p>	<p>9:22 17:9 27:18 27:21 31:13,25 32:7,17 taken 5:2 18:2 36:10,15 talk 10:12 18:21 25:20 talked 21:22 32:2 talking 12:23 Tariff)File 1:12 tax 25:18 tech 28:19 technicians 15:4 technology 15:16 tell 26:15 ten 17:22 19:8 20:1 24:12 ten-hour 14:19 term 12:15 terror 23:6 testify 33:22 testimony 3:4,13 5:7 18:16 30:4 36:8,9 thank 4:3,9,24 5:17,19 7:2,4 9:16,17 11:6,7 11:11,17 18:1,3 18:12,13 20:14 20:20,21 22:10 22:11 24:22,23 24:24 25:4 26:17,23 29:7 29:12,22 30:2,9 30:13 31:7,14 33:17,18,25 thanks 4:22 9:18 18:15,19 22:12 26:18 33:19,20 thereto 36:17 thing 6:4 17:8 23:25 28:3 32:16 things 13:16 25:7 27:10 31:18,20 33:3,4,7,10,16 think 3:6 19:9,12</p>	<p>21:6 24:11 29:3 31:24 32:6,12 thinks 17:12 third 16:4 thought 20:1,14 23:6 thoughtful 18:15 thoughts 5:3 thousand 21:8 three 5:5,9 11:3 17:5 18:7 24:10 ticket 14:14,20 ties 29:9,10 time 4:24 5:2 8:8 9:10,19 15:7,23 18:1,2 22:8,9 25:25,25,25 26:7,7,13,15 27:15 28:7 30:23 31:1 33:7 33:20 34:1 tired 9:10 23:3 today 8:7,12 9:3 13:22 14:15,25 22:10 23:25 told 19:10 Tomc 2:3 4:3,4 11:14 29:15 tonight 31:16,20 33:4 tonight's 11:16 tools 15:18,20,22 16:14 total 5:4 10:10,14 27:24 28:1 touched 16:7 17:20 towers 13:2 track 27:9 trackhoe 17:10 trackhoes 17:7 trade 7:11 traffic 13:7 train 15:9 trained 14:19 training 14:19 transcribed 5:8</p>
--	--	---	---	---

T

T 1:20
table 33:15
take 4:1 5:11

<p>transcript 1:4 5:10 11:16 transmission 13:3 17:21 traveling 15:4 trenching 14:17 trend 8:5 tried 29:8 troubleman 16:3 troublemen 15:3 truck 13:19,24 15:5,21 trucks 14:10,11 Truly 18:12 Truman 13:6 trying 27:6 Tuesday 4:24 tunnel 16:25 turn 9:10 33:1 Twain 13:11 two 3:18 5:4 10:19 13:21 14:7 21:13 23:19 Two-by-six 23:16 typewriting 36:12 Tyvek 23:24</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">U</p> <p>UE 8:16 13:12,16 28:12 unconstitution... 7:15 8:24 underground 13:4 understand 10:20 19:10 21:4 26:9 understandable 20:1 unfortunate 32:20 union 1:7,10 2:3 4:4 9:21,21 12:3,6,20 13:7</p>	<p>14:7 18:7 21:24 29:13,14 United 8:6,11 unknown 17:17 unplug 20:6,7 unplugging 20:11 update 13:9 updated 22:1,3,3 urban 28:8,11,25 usage 10:7,16,17 10:19 27:25 28:1,2 29:4 use 8:18,19 10:11 10:15 17:3 27:22 30:18 utility 13:25 25:10,25</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">V</p> <p>various 18:9 vents 23:19 versus 28:11 29:1 vicious 25:19 viewing 18:21 voltage 15:25 Volume 1:8 volunteer 18:9</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">W</p> <p>waiting 32:24 walk 14:25 wall 23:18 walls 23:16 want 3:25 4:23 7:20 20:15 24:17,21 25:16 33:16 wanted 5:21,22 15:12 19:14 23:12 31:16 32:11 33:2 wanting 21:5,11 wants 3:22 24:11 wasting 31:1 water 7:13 32:4 33:15</p>	<p>way 17:13 21:4 24:20 ways 32:18 wear 15:11,13 wedding 16:3 week 13:21 welcome 4:22,23 5:17,21 6:3,15 wellbeing 31:24 Welsch 26:19,20 26:25 29:8,22 29:23 35:8 Welsh 29:7 went 14:3 15:12 16:17 20:12,12 20:13 23:13 24:4,16,17 weren't 5:5 we'll 3:24 4:1 9:23 11:21 18:21 we're 3:2,21 8:15 23:21 24:7,21 26:6 27:7 32:4 32:16,23 33:2 we've 14:3 16:24 24:6 27:8 28:23 Whitney 2:12 4:15 Whitney.payn... 2:15 willing 8:22 24:12 winter 7:22 wire 16:9 Wisconsin 23:4 23:14 24:18 witness 3:15 6:18 36:7 witnesses 34:25 36:10 wonderful 19:13 wooden 13:18 words 31:19 wordy 18:16 work 12:22 13:13,17 14:9</p>	<p>14:18 15:12 18:11,18 19:3 worked 12:24,24 13:2,6,12,16 23:8,9 24:15 33:6 workers 15:10 17:14 working 8:15 16:3 21:14 26:10 work-related 15:24 worse 6:21 Worth 9:19 wrap 23:24,25 Wurth 6:18,20 6:24 7:4 9:16 9:17 35:2</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">Y</p> <p>yard 16:6 17:1,4 17:9 yeah 20:17,23 year 8:9,10 14:22 15:14 19:22 21:7 27:9,15,15 28:3 29:2,11 years 7:23 9:9 11:3 12:4,7,9 16:1,10 18:7 19:4 22:1,5 23:22 24:7,10 year's 12:21 young 21:13 23:4</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">Z</p> <p>zoning 12:16</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">\$</p> <p>\$1.33 10:25 \$12.69 11:2 \$120 16:12 \$13 21:16 \$14 21:16,19 \$15,000 23:21 \$17.18 10:23</p>	<p>\$225 15:16 \$250 24:19 \$265 25:11 \$30 21:14,18 \$398 19:9 \$400 23:5 \$463.41 19:19 \$502.94 19:20 \$6.23 10:21 \$800 15:16</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">0</p> <p>042 28:2 0583 10:15 062 28:5 0622 10:17 08 28:13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">1</p> <p>19:21 11:22 35:12 1MSH 10:7 1.4 21:9 24:10 1.7 21:10 10 35:3 10th 28:4 11 35:4,12,13 11th 4:22 113 25:14 26:13 12 1:8 4:23 12th 10:6,20,24 13 14:7 1439 12:18 15 11:1 15th 10:16,22 1576 12:6 16th 8:2 1649 12:2 185 9:2 1901 2:4 193.42 10:15 1980 12:23 1988 12:23 13:12 1989 23:12,23 24:1</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">2</p>
---	---	--	--	--

LOCAL PUBLIC HEARING 2/6/2015

<p>29:22 11:22 35:13 2,000 23:11 20 12:4 21:14 200 2:8,13 200.750 8:13 2000 27:9 2007 27:25 2008 7:6 28:1,21 2012 28:4 2013 8:13 19:7 28:4,13 29:11 2014 8:6,10 21:9 2015 1:6 8:2 28:13,21 208.020 8:13 21 35:5 22 35:6 2230 2:9 4:10 227.53 10:18 23 14:4 24 23:22 25 24:7 35:7 26 35:8 265 26:13 27 1:6 275 10:23 29 35:14</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">3</p> <hr/> <p>3 18:20 29:14,21 35:14 3,056 10:17 30 35:9 31 35:10 314 2:5,19 33 14:25 3318 10:7 360 2:14</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">4</p> <hr/> <p>4 29:13 4H 12:9 40 14:24 23:17 450 24:20 46 28:11 29:1 46.4 28:6</p>	<p>49 14:24 21:25 22:5</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">5</p> <hr/> <p>5th 27:16 50 14:24 526-6036 2:15 544-3484 2:5 573 2:10,15</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">6</p> <hr/> <p>6 35:2 6th 28:3 63101 2:19 63166 2:5 644-2191 2:19 65 28:15,20,25 65102 2:9,14 4:10 66149 2:4 69 14:23</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">7</p> <hr/> <p>7:41 34:1 70 23:18 70,000 14:5 711 2:18 751-5324 2:10</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">8</p> <hr/> <p>80 14:3</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">9</p> <hr/> <p>9.4 28:10,10 29:1 954 11:2</p>			
--	---	--	--	--